1983

Joseph Mascaro And Shely Taylor v. John S. Davis, Charley Joseph, Curtis Baum, Individuals, and Chatillion Inc., A Utah Corporation : Appellant's Brief

NATURE OF THE CASE

Appellants obtained a default judgment against respondents Davis and Joseph which was then later declared to have been satisfied as to the claims of appellant Shelby Taylor by reason of the transfer of certain property, notwithstanding the fact that several conditions precedent agreed to by the parties had not been fulfilled, and then modified and otherwise set aside as to appellant Mascaro notwithstanding the fact that two prior motions to set aside the default judgment based on the same grounds had been denied by two other district court judges.

DISPOSITION OF THE CASE IN THE LOWER COURT

A default judgment was taken against respondent-defendants John S. Davis and Charley Joseph in favor of appellant-plaintiff Joseph Mascaro for the sum of \$205,869.16

and in favor of appellant-plaintiff Shelby Taylor for the sum of \$85,706.00.

Respondents Davis and Joseph thereafter brought a motion to set aside the default judgment on January 21, 1981, before the Honorable James Sawaya. This motion was denied by Judge Sawaya, whose order is dated February 13, 1981.

After respondent Charley Joseph obtained new counsel, he brought another motion to set aside the default judgment, which motion was denied by the order of Judge Dean Conder dated January 28, 1982.

After again changing counsel, respondent Charley Joseph brought a motion for a Rule 62(h) stay of execution which was granted by Judge Dee's order signed March 16, 1982.

After a settlement conference before Judge Sawaya involving all the parties to the action, respondent Charley Joseph brought a motion before Judge Dee to enforce the settlement agreement, which motion was granted by Judge Dee's order and judgment signed November 5, 1982.

Respondent Charley Joseph next brought a third motion to set aside appellants' default judgment, which motion was heard before the Honorable David Dee on January 5, 1983. Judge Dee modified in part and set aside in part appellants' default judgment and in the same ruling held that respondent Charley Joseph did not participate in and was not responsible for any embezzlement of funds from the partnership.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek a reversal of Judge Dee's order affirming in part and setting aside in part appellants' default judgment, a reversal of Judge Dee's order enforcing a settlement agreement and a reversal of Judge Dee's order staying appellants from executing against respondent Joseph on their default judgment.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Partnership Formation and Initial Transactions.

Sometime prior to April 1978, appellant Joseph Mascaro entered into an informal partnership with respondent Charley Joseph for the purpose of obtaining and developing real property. On or about April 1, 1978, the Mascaro-Joseph partnership obtained an option from appellant Shelby Taylor to purchase approximately eighteen acres of land in Lehi, Utah County, State of Utah, for the sum of \$96,000.00. (Davis June 1981 Deposition, p. 19, R. 2.)

On September 11, 1979, the Mascaro-Joseph partnership having found a buyer for the Lehi property, simultaneously exercised its option with Taylor and sold that property along with some other land to the new buyer, defendant Chatillon, Inc., for the sum of \$140,914.09 in cash and an agreement to deed to the partnership eight lots worth \$30,000 each in Plain City, Utah. (Joseph June 1981 Deposition, p. 18, R. 4.)

Conversion of Partnership Funds by Davis and Joseph.

The funds received from Chatillon, Inc., which was represented

at all times by its major shareholder and president, defendant Baum, were taken by respondent Davis, the attorney for the Mascaro-Joseph partnership, and placed in his trust account. (Davis June 1981 Deposition, pp. 58-59.) Thereafter, without the knowledge or approval of appellant Mascaro, respondent Joseph obtained from Davis \$38,000.00 of the partnership funds and converted said funds to his own use. (Joseph September 1981 Deposition, pp. 8-9 R. 165.) Attorney Davis thereafter withdrew from his trust account the remainder of the funds and converted them to his own use. (R. 135, 165-166.)

Defrauding of Joseph Mascaro. Both Charley Joseph and John Davis continued to represent to appellant Mascaro that the funds from the Chatillon transaction were in Davis' trust account and would be disbursed to the partnership after the transaction had been completed and Chatillon had rendered the promised real property. Davis, June 1981 Deposition, pp. 58-59.)

Appellant Mascaro made repeated requests to respondents Joseph and Davis for an accounting of the funds received, but such requests were uniformly denied. (R. 5, 47-48.) Even after the default judgments against Joseph and Davis had been entered and the initial effort to set them aside had been denied, both Davis and Joseph claimed in their depositions that to their knowledge the funds received by the partnership were in the trust account of respondent Davis. Both respondent-Davis and Joseph continued to claim that they had not individually received any funds from the trust account. (R. 136.)

Discovery of Conversion. After the June depositions of John Davis and Charley Joseph, appellants were able to obtain an order from the court allowing the discovery of Davis' trust account. That discovery disclosed that there were no funds in the account and there had been none since before the filing of the lawsuit. (R. 119, 136.) Thereafter in the September deposition of Charley Joseph, his memory refreshed by seeing copies of two checks from his attorney Davis' trust account made out to him as payee for the sum of \$18,000.00 and \$20,000.00, Joseph admitted that he did receive \$38,000.00 from the funds received by the partnership (Joseph September 1981 Deposition, pp. 8-9, R. 165) and that the distribution of this sum to him was done without authority from or the knowledge of his partner, Joseph Mascaro. (Joseph September 1981 Deposition, pp. 18-19.)

The remaining approximately \$100,000.00 of funds had been embezzled by John Davis. (R. 136, 165-166.)

The Obligation To Shelby Taylor. The agreement between appellant Shelby Taylor and the Mascaro-Joseph partnership was that the cash proceeds from the sale of the Lehl property would be used to purchase some income producing property for appellant Shelby Taylor. After the receipt by the Mascaro-Joseph partnership of the approximately \$140,000.00, Joseph Mascaro proceeded to attempt to fulfill the partnership's obligations to Shelby Taylor. Some income producing property acceptable to Taylor was located and Joseph Mascaro

paid in excess of \$10,000.00 of his own monies as a down-payment on this property. (Davis June 1981 Deposition, pp. 37-38; Joseph September 1981 Deposition, pp. 17-18.) The funds previously received by the Mascaro-Joseph partnership had been specifically set aside to repay Joseph Mascaro the sums that he had put forward and to make the balance of the payments on the property. Due to what can only be characterized as an embezzlement from the partnership by respondents Davis and Joseph, no such funds were available. Therefore, the income property for appellant Taylor was foreclosed on and the funds invested by appellant Mascaro out of his own pocket were lost. (Davis June 1981 Deposition, p. 38.)

Commencement of Litigation. On May 1, 1980, appellants Mascaro and Taylor filed a complaint in the above-entitled action; (R. 2-9) and on June 5, 1980 a default judgment against respondents Davis and Joseph was signed by District Judge Bryant H. Croft.

On February 6, 1981, respondents Davis and Joseph brought a motion to set aside the default judgment which was heard by the Honorable James S. Sawaya. This motion was denied by Judge Sawaya's order dated February 13, 1981. (R. 89.)

After obtaining new counsel (by reason of an order of the court requiring him to do so), respondent Joseph again brought a motion to vacate the default judgment, which was heard this time by the Honorable Judge Dean E. Conder. (R. 163-164.) This motion to vacate the default judgment was

likewise denied by Judge Conder with an order dated January 28, 1982. (R. 245.)

Ruling by Judge Dee on a Motion For Stay Of Execution. On February 19, 1982, respondent Charley Joseph brought a motion for a Rule 62(h) stay of execution on the default judgment which was heard before the Honorable Judge David Dee. (R. 258-259.) Over the objections of appellants (R. 348-355), on March 16, 1982 Judge David Dee signed an order which included the following language:

3. This court retains continuing jurisdiction over this case.

4. Although this case has been brought in the posture of a debt owing, as between Joseph Mascaro and Charley Joseph, it is, in fact, more correctly viewed as a dissolutionment of their partnership.

5. That this court, therefore, intends to treat the matter as a dissolution of the partnership, intending to become fully appraised of both the partnership debts and the partnership assets.

6. That this court intends to require payment of all legitimate partnership debts out of the partnership assets and to divide the partnership profits equally among the partners. Therefore, all partnership assets acquired by the plaintiffs and Charley Joseph are to be preserved until dispersed by order of this court.

7. This court views that the embezzlement of approximately \$100,000.00 by attorney John S. Davis to be crux of this dispute.

8. That as John S. Davis was the attorney for the partnership at the time of this embezzlement, each partner will share equally what loss is realized from said embezzlement after John Davis' assets had been exhausted through counsel's efforts to execute on the judgment against him. (R. 359-360.)

This order signed by Judge Dee had the effect of completely changing the posture of the case and virtually lifting the judgment against respondent Charley Joseph.

Pretrial Settlement Conference. On May 11, 1962, a pretrial settlement conference was held before the Honorable James S. Sawaya. (R. 402.) At this settlement conference, defendants Curtis Baum and Chatillion, Inc. agreed to tender to the Mascaro-Joseph partnership eight lots of real property in Plain City, Utah. Appellant Taylor agreed to accept four of the eight lots in full satisfaction of his judgment, provided certain improvements (i.e., streets, curb and gutter, etc.) were installed by Baum and Chatillion and provided that evidence could be produced that the lots in question were selling for cash and in an amount of at least \$30,000.00 per lot. Appellant Mascaro agreed to accept two of these lots in partial satisfaction of his judgment based on the same conditions. The final two lots were to be held in escrow with the court pending a resolution of the remainder of the judgment against respondent Joseph. Defendants Baum and Chatillion, Inc. were required by the settlement agreement to install the required improvements and provide documentary evidence of sales in the area. (R. 522-525.)

Judge Dee's Ruling Enforcing Settlement Agreement. The required improvements were never made. When documentation on sales of adjacent lots was produced, it showed that several lots in the area had been traded and bartered. There was,

however, no evidence of any lots being sold for cash. (R. 522-525.) In the meantime, the eight lots were tendered into court by defendants Baum and Chatillion. As the appellants did not believe that the property tendered by Baum and Chatillion, Inc. could have been sold for \$30,000.00 per lot in cash, appellants refused to accept said lots as satisfaction of their judgment.

On November 5, 1982 Judge David Dee signed an order enforcing a settlement agreement in the above-entitled matter which required that appellant Taylor accept as complete satisfaction of his judgment four of the lots, and requiring that appellant Mascaro, in partial satisfaction of his judgment, accept two of the lots. (R. 579-586.) This order was signed notwithstanding the fact that the improvements were never made as required and that the lots did not have a proven cash value of \$30,000.00 each. Defendant Chatillion, Inc. is now in bankruptcy and the lots in question are tied up in that proceeding.

Joseph's Third Motion to Vacate Default Judgment. On January 5, 1983, respondent Joseph for the third time brought a motion before the court to vacate the default judgment against him. (R. 482-487.) This motion was also heard by the Honorable Judge David Dee. Judge Dee then signed an order modifying in part and setting aside in part the default judgment. The order by its language eliminated the remainder of appellants' default judgment as against respondent Joseph.

The court determined that the claims of appellant Taylor had been fully and completely compromised and settled by the transfer of the four lots, and therefore Taylor's action was dismissed with prejudice or otherwise declared satisfied, even though to this date appellant Taylor has never personally received any of the lots, regardless of their value, nor received any other consideration for his judgment. The order further had the effect of determining that respondent Joseph did not participate in the embezzlement of the funds, despite the fact that the only evidence before the court was to the contrary. The order did, however, attempt to compensate Joseph Mascaro for the more than \$10,000 he paid out of pocket as well as for the \$38,000.00 taken by Charley Joseph from the partnership by granting to Mascaro the two said lots. The remainder of his judgment as against respondent Joseph was lifted. (Judge Dee's Order Not in Record.) Thus, the case has been fully ruled upon as to every claim, either by a judgment or by a dismissal, and the case is ripe for appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

JUDGE DEE ERRED IN GRANTING DEFENDANT-RESPONDENT CHARLEY JOSEPH'S MOTION TO VACATE AND SET ASIDE THE DEFAULT JUDGMENT BECAUSE THE SAME MOTION, BASED ON THE SAME ARGUMENTS, HAD BEEN DENIED ON TWO PREVIOUS OCCASIONS BY OTHER DISTRICT COURT JUDGES

It is well-established law in the State of Utah that one District Court Judge may not overrule the rulings of

another District Court Judge. State v. Morgan, 527 P.2d 225 (Utah 1974); Peterson v. Peterson, 530 P.2d 821 (Utah 1974); In re: Estate of Mecham, 537 P.2d 312 (Utah 1975); Madsen v. Salt Lake School Board, 645 P.2d 658 (Utah 1982). Section 76-7-19, Utah Code Ann. (1953), specifically provides that:

If an application for an order, made to a judge of a court in which the action or proceeding is pending, is refused in whole or in part, or is granted conditionally, no subsequent application for the same order can be made to any other judge, except of a higher court; . . .

The statutory law and case law of this state are consistent in holding that a District Court Judge may not overturn the rulings of another District Court Judge.

A. The Claim That Attorney John Davis Perpetuated Fraud On The Court Was Argued By Attorney Dale Potter In Defendant Joseph's Second Motion To Vacate The Default Judgment.

Judge Dee in his order modifying in part and setting aside in part the default judgment against Charley Joseph stated that:

This court having determined that the default judgment previously entered in this matter on June 5, 1980 was entered as a result of the intentional, deliberate and malicious fraud of attorney John S. Davis, an officer of the court, which fraud so completely thwarted the process of justice that the default judgment, in fairness and good conscious, should not be permitted to stand; . . .

That claim of respondent Joseph that his attorney, respondent Davis, intentionally perpetuated a fraud on the court was argued by respondent Joseph's second attorney, Dale

Potter, in Joseph's second motion to vacate default judgment of October 14, 1982. In his motion dated September 27, 1981, attorney Potter argued on behalf of Joseph as follows:

This motion is made on the ground that the default judgment herein was taken against Joseph through the fraud, misconduct and intentional negligent and violation of fiduciary duty by Davis, Joseph's attorney, whose actions of embezzlement placed his interest in opposition to Joseph's. As a result of this fraud perpetrated by co-defendant Davis, defendant Joseph has been denied a fair opportunity to have his position heard on the merits.

In his supporting memorandum attorney Potter stated as one of his three major points that:

The Judgment Was Obtained By The Fraud Of John Davis, An Agent To Joseph. Mr. Joseph Was Unaware And Did Not Share In Davis' Fraud Or Negligence.

This claim, which was argued to and considered by Judge Conder, is exactly the same claim which was argued by attorney Joseph Tesch in respondent Joseph's third motion to vacate the default judgment. In his memorandum in support of the motion to set aside the default judgment, attorney Tesch stated his point as follows:

Attorney John S. Davis in his capacity as an officer of the court and as a fiduciary, deliberately perpetrated fraud on the court which justifies relief under Rule 60(b)(7) U.R.C.P.

Judge Conder in the hearing in which he denied respondent Joseph's motion to vacate had heard the arguments of attorney Dale Potter that respondent Charley Joseph had only recently learned of the embezzlement by John Davis of the

partnership funds. It had been further argued that Davis' conduct created a conflict of interest between John Davis and Charley Joseph which was the reason why attorney Davis had never answered the complaint and why he had waited so long to make a motion to set aside the default judgment. (Transcript of January 18, 1982 hearing.) Judge Conder, however, asked attorney Potter:

Now, what has the plaintiff done that has prevented Mr. Joseph from getting his day in court? What you're saying is that his attorney, that is, Mr. Joseph's own attorney was the one that perpetuated the misrepresentation or fraud on Mr. Joseph and failed to file. Isn't that malpractice? Isn't that where the attorney is liable?

(Transcript of January 18, 1982 hearing, pp. 53-54.)

Judge Conder refused to consider what attorney Potter considered as new evidence since the three month time period had passed. (Transcript of January 18, 1982 hearing, p. 56..)

Judge Conder, after listening to the arguments and reading the memorandum submitting by counsel, stated his ruling from the bench as follows:

You knew the lawsuit was pending in 1980, in January or February of 1980, and I don't remember which. And here it is 1982 and that's almost two years that have gone by since that time. I understand that you have had negotiations and tried to work it out. But I have a very difficult time because the law says, "Let's put these things to rest within a certain time element" and sets up statutes of limitation and says in a lawsuit it can be brought and can't even be brought after certain times because of this. We say that you can't bring a motion for mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable neglect or newly discovered evidence or fraud after three months after a judgment has been entered.

And it seems to me those are all the elements that we're talking about here. And that he knew or should have known that Mr. Davis was not doing the job for him that he thought he was. He was relying upon negotiations taking place without protecting his lawsuit that was pending at that time. He knew the lawsuit was pending and then the fact that the court has already ruled on it I have some grave difficulty.

The only thing I can do is deny the motion.

(Transcript of January 18, 1982 hearing, pp. 57-58.)

In addition to the claim that Davis committed fraud on the court, Judge Dee in his order modifying in part and setting aside in part the default judgment stated as his second reason for setting aside the judgment:

It being determined that defendant Charley Joseph was not a participant in the fraud perpetrated on the court by attorney John S. Davis, but rather was a victim thereof, and by reason of said fraud of attorney John S. Davis, was fraudulently prevented from asserting otherwise meritorious defenses and claims and litigating the issue on the merits; . . .

This claim that defendant Joseph did not participate in attorney Davis' fraud was also made by attorney Potter in respondent Joseph's second motion to vacate the default judgment. However, Judge Conder, in his ruling, specifically ruled that Charley Joseph "knew or should have known" that attorney Davis was not protecting his interests. Pursuant to the court's ruling, it is reasonable to assume that, even if Charley Joseph did not participate in the fraud, his inaction certainly allowed the fraud to take place.

B. Judge Conder Only Consented To Have Judge Dee Hear Defendant Joseph's Motion To Vacate Default Judgment If Judge Dee Found That It Was Brought On Different Grounds Than The Motion To Vacate Default Judgment Heard And Ruled Upon By Judge Conder.

Judge Dee's order modifying in part and setting aside in part default judgment states that:

The Honorable Judge Conder having previously denied defendant Charley Joseph's motion to set aside default, but having subsequently for reasons of judicial economy relinquished all authority and jurisdiction in this matter; . . .

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