1983

**Joseph Mascaro And Shely Taylor v. John S. Davis, Charley Joseph, Curtis Baum, Individuals, and Chatillion Inc., A Utah Corporation : Respondent's Brief**

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

It is vitally important to the proper understanding of this case, and its convoluted procedural history in the lower court, to constantly keep in mind that Mr. Davis, from the day that Plaintiff's summons was served, used this lawsuit to attempt to keep his theft hidden. Like a house of mirrors, nothing is as it appears. What seems to be the simple failure to

respond to a summons was in fact the first step in a deliberate and intentional scheme to manipulate the judicial process. The procedural history of this case is sad testimony of what one unscrupulous and self-dealing attorney can do to abuse and disrupt the legal process to cover-up his own wrongdoing. A review of the record below clearly reveals attorney Davis' manipulation of the system to cover-up his theft of the partnership's funds.

In the early part of 1978, Plaintiff-Appellant, Joseph Mascaro, and Defendant-Respondent, Charley Joseph, formed a partnership for the purpose of real estate acquisition. There was no written partnership agreement. The agreement called for them to split partnership profits on a 50/50 basis after expenses had been reimbursed. (R. 298) The partnership then proceeded to attempt to find buyers for the now improved property with Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, manning the laboring oar, although he and Plaintiff-Appellant, Mascaro, did discuss strategy and make necessary decisions together. In fact, in 1977 and 1978 Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, expended over \$10,000.00 in out-of-pocket expenses in this effort and diverted sufficient energies and attention from his trucking business so that from 1976 to 1978 gross receipts from his trucking business fell from \$112,001.61 to \$45,040.00, and net profits fell to \$1,595.53. This compares to gross receipts of \$124,696.00 and a net profit of \$29,956.71 in 1979 after he was relieved of most of the partnership duties. (R. 301-303)

The year following the formation of the partnership, some buyers presented themselves but none could perform. Finally a deal was structured with a Mr. Paul Tanner, but it too stalled. (R. 300) That was

the fateful point at which attorney John S. Davis injected himself into the action. Even the manner in which attorney Davis injected himself into the affairs of the Mascaro/Joseph partnership was ethically appalling. His appearance in this matter was indicative of how he was to handle himself until the court below, by order, forced him to withdraw as counsel. However, at the time, Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, and Plaintiff-Appellant, Mascaro, thought they had found their savior. (R. 299,300,462)

Neither partner knew attorney Davis. In the course of his trucking business, Defendant-Respondent, Charley Joseph, had hired attorney Davis' father-in-law to do some work for him on a sub-contract basis. When Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, wasn't paid, he had a hard time paying Davis' father-in-law. Davis became involved in the collection. Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, paid most of the money owed and then described his real estate deal that was pending, for which the partnership had a buyer, one Paul Tanner, and asked attorney Davis to wait to collect the balance until the partnership real estate deal closed. (R. 299) When attorney Davis learned that Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, was involved in a good sized real estate deal that was about to close, he became very excited and strongly urged Joseph to let him (Davis) represent them in closing the deal with Tanner, the buyer. (R. 299,300,461) Davis claimed that he knew Tanner and could make him perform. Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, met with attorney Davis, and then both partners met with attorney Davis. At this second meeting, attorney Davis told them that he knew that Tanner was in financial trouble but that he (Davis) would get the money out of Tanner or help them find a new buyer, as he had a lot of contacts. (R.299) Based on these representations, the

partnership agreed to hire attorney Davis. (R. 299,300,461)

What happened over the course of the next three years becomes a case history in the abuse of the professional trust accorded an attorney by his clients and the trust accorded an attorney by the courts by reason of his oath, code of ethics and position as an officer of the court. Initially, attorney Davis appeared to work actively to bring to fruition the sale of the property. And, as the process drug on, the partners came to rely more and more on attorney Davis. (R.300,461-62) While the process continued to drag on, Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, continued to do virtually all of the leg work for the partnership, but relied more and more on attorney Davis' legal expertise and sophistication to control the transaction. (R. 299) Finally a closing with a certain Chatillion, Inc., a Utah corporation owned and operated by a Curtis Baum, was arranged. Within a few days of the closing, partial consideration in the amount of approximately \$140,000.00 in cash was received by attorney Davis as a down payment. The balance of approximately \$240,000.00 due the partnership was to be received in the form of eight lots in Weber County represented by Baum to have that value. (R. 300) The original \$100,000.00 cash payment was placed by attorney Davis into his trust fund. (R. 300,450) Of that amount, Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, directed attorney Davis to give \$40,000.00 to Taylor, \$20,000.00 to Plaintiff-Appellant, Mascaro, \$20,000.00 to himself (Joseph), and to retain the balance in trust in the event of potential legal disputes threatened by Tanner. (R. 300) Rather than doing as directed, attorney Davis issued \$20,000.00 to Joseph, and unbeknownst to either Mascaro or Joseph, and without their permission, attorney Davis embezzled approximately \$100,000.00 of the closing monies

to his own use. (R. 450-460) What then happened would make the most cynical critic of the legal system shudder with disbelief as attorney Davis wailed to himself his knowledge of the legal process to cover-up for as long as possible his own misconduct, while burying his client in a procedural quagmire.

To understand how he was able to so effectively prevent Defendant-Respondent, Joseph, from taking the steps that would force the issues to be examined on their merits, and necessarily reveal his own self-dealing, one must understand the emotional hold that attorney Davis had on Joseph.

Both Mascaro and Joseph had for the past year put complete trust and faith in Davis (R. 300,664) They had increasingly relied on him to handle what has become for them something that was too big and complex to understand. (R. 300) As the real estate transaction initiated by the Mascaro/Joseph partnership became increasingly complex, Mr. Joseph came to rely more and more on Attorney Davis' superior knowledge and training. (R. 300,462, & see pp. 22,29,35,37,40,41,45, Deposition of Charley Joseph, June 18, 1981.) Mr. Joseph was constantly in touch with Attorney Davis asking for advice and guidance. Eventually Mr. Joseph relied on Attorney Davis to personally handle the negotiations and other details as Attorney Davis saw fit. Additionally, Attorney Davis represented Mr. Joseph in other legal matters, in which Charley Joseph relied totally on Attorney Davis' legal expertise. (R. 300,462) The fiduciary nature of the relationship between Attorney Davis and Mr. Joseph was long term, total and complete: Mr. Joseph totally trusted and relied on Attorney Davis. When the present lawsuit was commenced, attorney Davis again persuade Defendant-Respondent Joseph that he was the only one who knew the facts

well enough to properly defend him. (R. 301,462,463) In response to his inquiries, Davis kept reassuring Joseph that everything was under control. It wasn't until actual proof of Davis' embezzlement of the trust funds that Joseph could emotionally accept that his attorney had embezzled the partnership money, and had buried him in a default judgment for over \$300,000.00 in monies which he, Joseph, had never received. (R. 301,462-63)

The record indicates that Attorney Davis and Mr. Joseph were both served on May 5, 1980. (r. 14-17) Attorney Davis had committed his embezzlement of the majority of the partnership funds in June, 1979, nearly one full year before the suit. (R. 450-460) The day following the service of summons, Mr. Joseph called Attorney Davis and requested that Davis take whatever steps were necessary and proper to represent him. (R. 301,702-03) Over the next several months Mr. Joseph spoke with Attorney Davis repeatedly and consistently about the status of the lawsuit and Attorney Davis told him not to worry and that everything was taken care of. (R. 704,462,301) Mr. Joseph in fact did believe that Attorney Davis was defending him and representing his interests. Mr. Joseph, who is a trucker and who has little education or sophistication in legal matters, did not personally know what was necessary and proper to defend and represent him, but he fully believed that his attorney had done and was doing whatever was proper and most advantageous in protecting his interest. (R. 300,462) Davis did subsequently tell Mr. Joseph's wife that he had in fact filed an answer. (R. 467-68)

In fact, Attorney Davis had not filed an answer on behalf of Mr. Joseph, nor made any other responsive pleading. Rather, Attorney Davis

had intentionally and deliberately allowed the entering of the default against Mr. Joseph and himself as the first step in an elaborate scheme. The purpose of the scheme was to avoid litigation on the merits, thus preventing, or at least delaying, the discovery process which would lead to the revelation of his embezzlement. Secondly, by procedurally side-stepping the merits and concentrating on motions and procedures tangential to the real issues, Attorney Davis hoped to "consume" enough time to hopefully structure a settlement with all parties, and in that manner avoid discovery of his embezzlement. Finally, in the event he was not successful in avoiding the discovery process long enough to effect a settlement, the fact that there was a judgment against him would render moot the question of what happened to the partnership funds in his trust account: i.e., the sole issue would be execution of the judgment.

Attorney Davis' scheme was, to a frightening degree, successful. He fraudulently used his position as an officer of the Court and fiduciary to his client to manipulate and pervert the process of justice to 1) effectively delay discovery of his own embezzlement for nearly two and one-half years, and, 2) to effectively manipulate the judicial process in such a way that the full weight of a default judgment in excess of \$300,000 rests on Mr. Joseph. Argument I below closely examines the record before the Court. Such an examination clearly reveals Attorney Davis' scheme as outlined above, and how successful it has been.

#### B. Settlement Agreement

On May 4, 1982, one week prior to the time set for trial of Plaintiff-Appellants' claims and Defendant-Respondent's cross-claims against

Defendants Baum and Chatillion, Inc., a pre-trial conference was held. In conformance with the order of the court, each party was present personally and represented by counsel of record. With the help of the court, negotiations for settlement began. These negotiations took the pattern of meetings among the attorneys, followed by conferences of the attorneys with their respective clients, followed by further negotiations among the attorneys, and so on. After two hours, a stipulated settlement was achieved which compromised and settled a great many of the issues of dispute among the parties. Once the settlement amongst the parties had been achieved, a final conference was held in the court's chambers. Each party was present, with counsel, in the court's chambers. At that time, the terms of the settlement were read to and approved by the court. As a result, the trial date scheduled for the following week was struck. None of these facts are disputed. (R. 528,529,522,523) Counsel for Defendant-Respondent Joseph, immediately began work on the preparation of the written documents evidencing the agreement reached. (R. 531) After several consultations by telephone among the various counsel for the parties regarding the wording of the final documents, complete documents were forwarded to Joseph Rust and Charles Hanna, attorneys for Plaintiffs, Joseph Mascaro and Shelby Taylor, Duane Burnett, attorney for Defendants Curtis Baum and Chatillion, Inc., and to Attorney John Davis. These included a Settlement Agreement, a Stipulation and Motion to Dismiss, and an Order. (R. 532)

Within one or two days of mailing these documents to the above named respective counsel, telephone conversations were had with both Duane Burnett and Charles Hanna. Duane Burnett indicated that he approved the documents and that he and his clients were ready and willing to sign them as prepared. Mr. Charles Hanna, who along with Joseph Rust, were representing the Plaintiffs, indicated that the documents prepared were satisfactory with one exception: paragraph 2(b) of the Settlement Agreement provided that any excess in value represented by the lots transferred to Plaintiff, Shelby Taylor, which value was beyond \$113,000, would pass to Defendant, Charley Joseph. Mr. Hanna argued that any excess should go to Plaintiff, Joseph Mascaro. (R. 532) A compromise was attempted but not successfully concluded. Note, however, that this dispute was not discussed and reduced to agreement at the pre-trial conference. It was not considered. It is only tangentially related to the main issues which were compromised and settled at the pre-trial conference.

In a letter dated June 3, 1982, (R. 555), attorney Joseph Rust, lead counsel for the Plaintiffs, acknowledged that the documents, as prepared and submitted for approval as to form, were reflective of the compromise and settlement successfully bargained for by the respective parties at the pre-trial conference. Subsequently, Defendant Curtis Baum, and his attorney, Mr. Burnett did supply financial information regarding lot sales in the Parkvale Subdivision. At about the same time, Defendant Baum, delivered to his attorney, Mr. Burnett, fully executed warranty deeds effecting the transfer of the specified lots to the parties as agreed.

Shortly thereafter, in a letter dated June 23, 1982, counsel for

Plaintiffs acknowledged the value of the subject lots, in Parkvale Subdivision, as represented by Defendant Baum and Chatillion, Inc. (R. 556) Nevertheless, Plaintiffs indicated in that same letter that they did not intend to honor the agreement reached through compromise and settlement.

A R G U M E N T  
POINT I

ATTORNEY JOHN S. DAVIS, IN HIS CAPACITY AS AN OFFICER OF THE COURT AND AS A FIDUCIARY, DELIBERATELY PERPETRATED FRAUD ON THE COURT WHICH JUSTIFIES RELIEF UNDER RULE 60(b)(7), U.R.C.P.

A. The record and facts reveal a clear scheme of an officer of the court to intentionally defraud the court.

That Davis did in fact embezzle nearly \$100,000 from the Joseph/Mascaro partnership is evident from the record before this Court. (R. 450-460) This embezzlement occurred between June, 1979 and October, 1979. (R. 450-460) Charley Joseph and attorney Davis were served on May 5, 1980 so the embezzlement had already occurred some time before. Attorney Davis' only concern was to keep hidden his embezzlement, and his representation of Charley Joseph would serve his purpose nicely. If he could arrange it so that a default judgment could be entered against Charley Joseph and himself, there would never be a confrontation on the issues raised by Plaintiff's Complaint. Without a confrontation on the issues there would be no need for discovery to occur, as the only relevant issue left would be execution on the judgment. Further, even if some discovery was pursued, he would assert the position that what he had done with his trust account and the partnership funds therein was moot.

that this was his motive in deliberately allowing the default to be entered without Charley Joseph's knowledge is abundantly clear even from the record before the Court. In Attorney Davis' deposition of June 18, 1981, when he was pressed about the status of his trust account, he refused to answer any questions about it. He refused to even reveal the name of the bank, on the basis that such an inquiry is irrelevant in that the issue had been reduced to judgment:

Q. Which bank is that?

A. I don't think I need to answer that one.

Q. I think it is important, because, of course, it goes to records that would reflect any disbursements out of that account.

A. How do you mean?

Q. Well, in other words, to determine exactly the status of that account, it may become necessary to subpoena the bank records, as far as determining--

A. I don't know that it is necessary at this point.  
You have got your judgment.

(Davis Deposition, June 18, 1981, at p. 59)

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